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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the '‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the Board's Report and Management Discussion & Analysis, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gquarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3X(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act [, we give in the "Annexure 1"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(B) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account ;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company

with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;
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(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our report of even date

Re: IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited (‘the Company”)

(i) (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material

discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable

(i)

(i)

Giv)

W)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(iXc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under clause
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not in the business of sale of any goods.
Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
income-tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. The provisions relating to sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise
and value added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

of income-tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and service tax, cess and other
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable. The provisions relating to sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax are not applicable to the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, provident

(viii)

(ix)

fund, employees’ state insurance, goods and services tax and cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute. The provisions relating to sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value
added tax are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of debt instruments in the nature of commercial papers
and term loans for the purposes for which they were raised though idle /surplus funds which were not
required for immediate utilization were invested in liguid investments.

(x}_}.}‘_-f?f_:i&%md upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

ForSR

report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

Batliboi & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Al Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005

-

Partner

Membership No: 102102
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 20, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF INDOSTAR HOME FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IndoStar Home Finance Private
Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Ind AS Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
/4"’6‘5’_3“?{5 and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
/ﬁlarraqg@nent and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
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timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Ind
AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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indoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2019
(Curency : Indian Rupees)

Particulars Naote At g et
b ° 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
I. ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 31,43,36,786 5,36,29,319 10,53,18,421
Loans 4 5,28,05,96,166 50,92,49,374 -
Other financial assets 5 19,23,126 13,98,126 -
5,59,68,56,078 56,42,76,819 10,53,18,421
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net} 6 7,56,160 11,33,509 1,17,484
Property, plant and equipment 7 2,50,67,141 1,19,70,930 4
Intangible assets 8 90,66,134 1,38,98,296 -
Other non-financial assets 5 3,03,71,498 91,97,119 20,213
6,52,60,933 3,61,99,854 1,37,697
TOTAL ASSETS 5,66,21,17,011 60,04,76,673 10,54,56,118
I1. UABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 10
li} total outstanding to micro enterprises and
small enterprises
il ; ; £ a2
lll.i totai outst_and ing dues of creditors other than 4,15,55,578 1,02,97,721 1,22,250
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Borrowings 11 3,65,93,89,966 - -
Other financial liabilities 12 21,94,53,189 8,59,14,390 -
3,92,03,98,733 9,62,12,111 1,22,250
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 13 42,32,156 11,50,126 =
Other non-financial liabilities 14 2,08,98,030 31,02,272 10,600
2,51,30,186 42,52,398 10,600
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,94,55,28,919 10,04,64,509 1,32,850
Equity
Equity share capital 15 2,00,00,00,000 60,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Other equity 16 (28,34,11,508) (9,99,87,836) 53,23,268
TOTAL EQUITY 1,71,65,88,092 50,00,12,164 10,53,23,268
i
§
: TOTAL LIABLITIES AND EQUITY . 5,66,21,17,011 60,04,76,673 10,54,56,118
Significant Accounting Policies 2

As per our repart of even date attached

For S R Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Mo. 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
WMembership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Pankaj Thapar

Director
DIN: 012252455

f% At

Prashant Shetty
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019

- -

Prashant Joshi
Director
DIN: 06400863

il

Priyal Shah
Company Secretary



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)

For the year ended

For the year ended

(Equity Share of face value of X 10 each)

Particulars Note
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from operations 17
Interest income 37,60,55,910 1,43,24,543
Fees and commission income 1,89,87,649 8,271
Net gain on fair value changes 65,00,328 -
Gain cI:-n derecognition of financial instruments measured at 2,41,67,001

amortised cost category
Total revenue from operations 42,57,10,978 1,43,32,814
Other income = =
Total income 42,57,10,978 1,43,32,814
Expenses
Finance costs 18 22,08,37,560 23,898
Impairment on financial instruments 19 1,43,74,513 12,79,501
Employee benefit expenses 20 26,81,61,995 9,14,63,102
Depreciation and amortization expenses 21 1,50,73,085 22,51,429
Other expenses 22 9,79,27,126 2,46,25,988
Total expenses 61,63,74,279 11,96,43,918
Profit before tax (19,06,63,301) (10,53,11,104)
Tax expense:

1. Current tax - -

2. Deferred tax expense /{income) -
Total tax expenses - -
Profit after tax (19,06,63,301) {10,53,11,104})
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 9,914 -

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss < n
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 9,914 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (19,06,53,387) {10,53,11,108)
Earnings per equity share 23

Basic earnings per share (%) 12.05) {5.17)
Diluted earnings per share (%) (2.05) {5.17)

As per our report of even date attached

For S R Batliboi & Co LLP
’Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan Pankaf Thapar

Partner Director
Membership No. 102102 DIN: 01225255

Prashant Shetty
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

-

Prashant Joshi
Director
DIN: 06400863

.
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Priyal Shah
Company Secretary




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Loss before tax
Adjustments for :

{19,06,63,301)

{10,53,11,104)

Interest income on financial assets (37,60,55,910) {1,43,24,543)
Finance costs 22,08,37,560 23,898
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,50,73,085 22,51,429
Provisions for expected credit loss 1,42,24,513 12,79,501
Provision for gratuity and leave encashment 37,62,226 11,63,284
Employee share based payment expense 72,29,315 -
Gain on sale/revaluation of investments (65,00,328) -
Operating Loss before working capital changes (31,20,92,840) {11,49,17,535)
Adjustments:
{Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances (4,74,71,47,249) (50,74,92,376)
{Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (5,25,000) (13,98,126)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-financial assets (2,11,74,379) {91,76,906)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable 3,12,57,857 1,01,75,471
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities (64,66,689) 8,59,14,390
Increase/(Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities 1,77,95,758 30,91,672
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions (6,70,282) (13,158)
(5,03,90,22,824) (53,38,16,568)
Interest income realised on financial assets 33,76,31,854 1,12,88,044
Finance costs paid (8,08,32,072) (23,898)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (4,78,22,23,042) (52,25,52,422)
Taxes paid 3,77,345 (10,16,025)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (4,78,18,45,693) (52,35,68,447)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Acquisition of FVTPL investments
Redemption of FVTPL investments

(2,32,53,903)

(83,231)
(13,48,20,00,000)
13,48,85,00,328

(1,34,07,297)
(1,47,13,358)

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (B) (1,68,36,806) (2,81,20,655)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital 1,40,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
Proceeds from borrowings 3,69,82,78,858 -
Repayments towards borrowings (3,88,88,892) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) 5,05,93,89,966 50,00,00,000
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B} + (C) 26,07,07,467 (5,16,89,102)




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,36,29,319 10,53,18,421
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 31,43,36,786 5,36,29,319
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet
Cash on hand 317 -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 31,43,36,469 2,42,74,549
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months : 2,93,54,770
Total 31,43,36,786 5,36,29,319

As per our report of even date attached

For S R Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
_ ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

-~ 3 ‘//
o bng Ty
Pankgj Thapar

qu. W

per Shrawan Jalan

S

Prashant Joshi
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity {SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2019

(a) Equity share capital of face value of Rs.10/- each Note Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2017 10,00,00,000
Shares issued during the period 50,00,00,000
Balance as at 31 March 2018 15 60,00,00,000
Balance as at 31 March 2018 60,00,00,000
Shares issued during the period 1,40,00,00,000
Balance as at 31 March 2019 15 2,00,00,00,000

{b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus Capital
Particulars Statutory Reserves u/s _ ; contribution from Total
Retained earnings
29C holding Company

Balance at 1 April 2017 8,52,652 44,70,616 - 53,23,268
Profit for the year - (10,53,11,104) - {10,53,11,104)
Total - (10,53,11,104) - (10,53,11,104)
Balance at 31 March 2018 8,52,652 (10,08,40,488) (9,99,87,836)
Balance at 31 March 2018 8,52,652 (10,08,40,488) = (9,99,87,836)
Loss for the year - (19,06,63,301) - (19,06,63,301)
Gain/loss on re-measurement of defined benefit plans - 9,914 - 9,914
Total - (19,06,53,387) - (19,06,53,387)
Share based payment expense - - 72,29,315 72,29,315
Balance at 31 March 2019 8,52,652 {29,14,93,875) 72,29,315 (28,34,11,908)

As per our report of even date attached

For 5 R Batliboi & Co LLP
hartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005
d,.{/-— » -
Nice
per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Membership No. 102102

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019
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Direct

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

DIN: 01225255

DIN: 06400862

Prashant Shetty Pri
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 May 2019




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

2.2

23

a)

Corporate Information

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 1st January 2016 and is domiciled in India. The Company is
wholly owned subsidiary of IndoStar Capital Finance Limited. The Company is engaged in housing finance business and registered with
National Housing Bank (‘NHB') as housing finance Company (HFC) not accepting public deposits, as defined under section 29A of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS'} as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 to the extent applicable and as amended from time to time. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant accounting standards.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2018 were prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, guidelines issued by the National Housing Bank (NHB} and other relevant provisions of the
Act, considered as the "Previous GAAP".

These financial statements are the Company’s first Ind AS financial statements and are covered by Ind AS 101, First-time adoption of
Indian Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the Company’s equity financial position,
financial performance and its cash flows is provided in Note 33.

The financial statements for the year ended on 31 March 2019 with comparative figures for the year ended on 31 March 2018 and Ind AS
opening balance sheet as on 1 April 2017 with their relevant notes and disclosures were adopted by the Company's Board of Directors on
20 May 2019.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities of the
Company as on balance sheet dates, within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting
date (non—current) is presented in Note 31.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in
addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

- the normal course of business
- the event of default
- the event of insolvency of bankruptcy of the Company/ or its counterparties

Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities can be termed as financial instruments.

(i) Classification of Financial Instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company's business model for managing
financial assets.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) such as derivative liabilities. Financial liabilities,
other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at FVTPL when they are derivative instruments or the fair value
designation is applied.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)
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(i) Assessment of business model and cash flows for financial assets

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective. The Company's business model is assessed at portfolio level and not at instrument level, and is based on observable
factors such as:

(i) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
entity's key management personnel;

(ii) The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

(iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account.

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test

Subseguent to the assessment to the relevant business model of the financial assets, the Company assesses the contractual terms of
financial assets to identify whether the cash flow realised are towards solely payment of principal and interest.

"Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life
of the financial asset. The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk.

(iii) Initial measurement of financial instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value.

(iv) Classification of Financial Instruments as per business model and SPPI test

{a) Loans at amortized cost

A'loan’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate {EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized
in the profit or loss.

(b) Bank balances
The Company measures Bank balances at amortised cost.

{c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those that are either held for trading. Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the
balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss.

(d) Debt securities and other borrowed funds-

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A compound
financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

(e) Undrawn loan commitments
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is required to provide a
loan with pre-specified terms to the customer, Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

(v) Reclassification of financial assets
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)
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{vi) Derecognition of financial assets in the following circumstances

(a) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based
on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

(b) Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets

A financial asset or a part of financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for
derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the
asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’'s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

{vii) Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, the Company measures
certain categories of financial instruments as explained in note 24 at fair value on each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date,

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as
summarised below:

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows.
Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred, if any.

Property plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to
acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the year till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of such assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.
The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method {'SLM’), which reflects the management’s estimate of the useful life of the respective
assets. The estimated useful life used to provide depreciation are as follows:

. Useful life as prescribed
Particulars Estlma:.lted it U ey by Schedule Il of the
Y Campatyy Companies Act 2013
Computers 3 years 3 years
Office Equipments 5 years 5 years
Servers and networks 5 years 6 years

Leasehold improvement is amortised on Straight Line Method over the lease term, subject to a maximum of 60 months.

Useful life of assets different from prescribed in Schedule Il of the Act has been estimated by management and supported by technical
assessment.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss till the date of
sale.

The useful lives and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)

d)

e)

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition

Amortization

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of 3 years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful
life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. If the expected useful life
of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

{i) Financial Assets

{a) Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles for Financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with
undrawn loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment
under Ind AS 109,

For the computation of ECL on the financial instruments, the Company categories its financial instruments as mentioned below:

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at
the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all advances
upto 30 days overdue under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are
classified under this stage. Exposures are classified as Stage 2 when the amount is due for more than 30 days but do not exceed 90 days.

Stage 3: All exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred. Exposures where the amount remains due for 90 days or more are considered to be stage 3
assets,

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the
remaining life of the financial instrument. The Company undertakes the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at
borrower level.

(b) Calculation of ECL:

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

Exposure-At-Default (EAD) : The Exposure at Default is amount the Company is entitled to receive as on reporting date including
repayments due for principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

Probability of Default (PD) : The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default of the exposure over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain Lime over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is
still in the portfolio.

Loss Given Default (LGD) : The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral.
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The ECL allowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the financial instruments as per the credit
risk involved. ECL allowance is computed on the below mentioned basis:

12-month ECL: 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 12-month ECL is applied on stage 1 assets.

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime ECL for credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset in cases of credit impaired loans and in case of
financial instruments where there has been significant increase in credit risk since origination. Lifetime ECL is the expected credit loss
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3
assets.

The Company computes the ECL allowance on collective basis on loans portfolio.

(ii) Non-financial assets

(a) Intangible assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an individual asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value of the asset less cost of its disposal and value in use. In determining the fair value,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

Recognition of income

Revenue generated from the business transactions (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable)
is measured at fair value of the consideration to be received or receivable by the Company. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:
Step 1 Identify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation

(a) Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR for the amortised cost asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, origination fees and
transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company recognised the interest
income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial status of the financial asset
improves and it no longer remains to be a credil-impaired, the Company revises the application of interest income on such financial asset
to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on all trading assets and financizl assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised using the
contractual interest rate in net gain on fair value changes.

(b) Origination fees
Origination fees, which the Company has received/recovered at time of granting of a loan, is considered as a component for computation
of the effective rate of interest (EIR) for the purpose of computing interest income.

(c) Assignment income
Assignment income is recognised on upfront basis by discounting the future excess interest spread .
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(c) Net gain/(loss) on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain or loss as a gain or expense respectively.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOCI is
recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

Finance Costs
The Company recognises interest expense on the borrowings as per EIR methodology which is calculated by considering any ancillary
costs incurred and any premium payable on its maturity.

Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan in which both
the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future Provident Fund benefits
other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

(ii) Defined Benefit schemes

(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum
payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated year
mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". The Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-
measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other comprehensive income ('OCr’) in the period in which they occur.,
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

(b) Leave Encashment

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on
actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method as at the reporting date.

Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement of profit and loss account and are not deferred.

Share based employee payments

Equity settled share based payments

The stock options granted to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date. The fair value of the options is
treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis. The amount
recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period,
the cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within equity.

Such rights have been provided to the employees on the equity shares of the Indostar Capital Finance Limited, who is halding Company.
Such contribution is credited directly as capital contribution of the Company.

Leasing

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Company as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items are
treated as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised
based on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which they it is incurred "¢\
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Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision
by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Taxes

{i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior vears are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to,
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(i) Minimum alternate tax
MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income

reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no
longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal Income Tax during the specified period.

(iii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

deductible temporary difterences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that itis no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or
increases loss per share are includec.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

o)

)
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Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing and accordingly there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS
108 dealing with Operating segment.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and
the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements, The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful lives of property, plant and equipment & intangible
assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, provision for rectification costs,
fair value measurement etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results
are known.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto, Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17.

The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets {e.g., personal computers) and short-term

p-
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 3
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 317 -
Balances with banks
-in current accounts 31,43,36,469 2,42,74,549 23,24,022
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 2,93,54,770 10,29,94,399
31,43,36,786 5,36,29,319 10,53,18,421
Note 4
Loans
At amortized cost
Business Loans
Home Loans 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875 -
Total - Gross 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875 -
Less: Impairment allowance {1,55,04,014) {12,79,501)
Total - Net 5,28,05,96,166 50,92,49,374 -
Secured by tangible assets 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875 -
Total - Gross 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875 -
Less: Impairment allowance (1,55,04,014) (12,79,501) -
Total - Net 5,28,05,96,166 50,92,49,374 ~
Loans in India
(a) Public sector - - -
{b) Others 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875
Total - Gross 5,29,61,00,180 51,05,28,875 -
Less: Impairment allowance (1,55,04,014) {12,79,501) -
Total - Net 5,28,05,96,166 50,92,49,374 -
Loans outside India (b) - - -
Total - Net (a)+(b) 5,28,05,96,166 50,92,49,374 -
Note 5
Other financial assets
Security deposit 19,23,126 13,98,126
19,23,126 13,98,126
Note 6
Current tax assets (net)
Advance Tax (net of provision) 7,56,160 11,33,509 1,17,484
7,56,160 11,33,509 1,17,484
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 7
Property, plant and equipment

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

Changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2019:

PARTICULARS senamheld Office equipment|  Computers | 'urmiture and Total
Impravement fixtures

Cost as at 1 April 2017 - - - - -
Additions 22,24,402 7.39,111 1,04,43,784 - 1,34,07,297
Disposals - - - - -
Cost as at 31 March 2018 22,24,402 7,39,111 1,04,43,784 - 1,34,07,297
Additions 81,02,667 10,41,641 1,40,70,249 39,346 2,32,53,903
Disposals - - - - -
Cost as at 31 March 2019 A) 1,03,27,069 17,80,752 2,45,14,033 39,346 3,66,61,200
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2017 - - - - -
Depreciation charged during the year 1,19,056 37,608 12,79,703 - 14,356,367
Disposals - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2018 1,183,056 37,608 12,79,703 . 14,36,367
Depreciation charged during the year 21,12,137 2,94,554 77,45,293 5,708 1,01,57,692
Disposals - - - - -
Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2019 (B) 22,31,193 3,32,162 90,24,996 5,708 1,15,94,059
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 (A) - (B) 80,95,876 14,48,590 1,54,89,037 33,638 2,50,67,141
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 21,05,346 7,01,503 91,64,081 - 1,19,70,930

Net carrying amount as at 1 April, 2017
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 8
Intangible assets

Changes in the carrying value of intangibles for the year ended 31 March 2019:

PARTICULARS Compuer Total
Software

Cost as at 1 April 2017 - -
Additions 1,47,13,358 1,47,13,358
Disposals - -
Cost as at 31 March 2018 1,47,13,358 1,47,13,358
Additions 83,231 83,231
Disposals - -
Cost as at 31 March 2019 (A) 1,47,96,589 1,47,96,589
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2017 - -
Amortisation recognised for the year §,15,062 8,15,062
Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2018 ' 8,15,062 8,15,062
Amortisation recognised for the year 49,15,393 49,15,393
Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2019 (B) 57,30,455 57,30,455
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2019 (A)- (B) 90,66,134 90,66,134
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2018 1,38,98,296 1,38,98,296
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Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

f' H
1

)2/

- As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Note 9
Other non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses 3,33,535 3,60,477 -
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 3,00,37,963 88,36,642 20,213
3,03,71,498 91,97,119 20,213
Note 10
Trade payables
Dues to Micro, small and mediumn enterprises " 5 ]
Dues to Others 4,15,55,578 1,02,97,721 1,22,250
4,15,55,578 1,02,97,721 1,22,250
Note 11
Borrowings
At amortised cost
Term loans
Term loans from banks (Refer note {a) below) 30,93,89,966 - -
Loan from related parties
Loan from holding Company 3,35,00,00,000 - -
Total 3,65,93,89,966 - -
Borrowings in India 3,65,93,89,966 - -
Borrowings outside India - o -
Total 3,65,93,89,966 - -
Secured borrowings 30,93,89,966 -
Unsecured borrowings 3,35,00,00,000 - -
Total 3,65,93,89,966 - -
(a) Term loan from banks (TL):
As at
31 March 2019
Redeemable within Rate of interest
>9.10% < 9.75%
Amount
Above 60 Months 3,75,00,000
48-60 Months 2,50,00,000
36-48 Months 2,50,00,000
24-36 Months 5,27,77,764
12-24 Months 9,16,66,672
0-12 Months 7,74,45,530
Total 30,93,89,966
Note 12
Other financial liabilities
Book overdraft 6,44,742 5,45,33,375
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 14,00,05,488 -
Employee benefits payable 1,86,93,404 1,20,00,000 -
Others 6,01,09,555 1,93,81,015 -
21,94,53,189 8,59,14,390 -
Note 13
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 17,22,760 3,65,322 =
- Leave encashment 25,09,396 7,84,804
42,32,156 11,50,126 -
Note 14
Non-financial liabilities -
Statutary dues payable ?\“aﬂcp AN 2,08,98,030 31,02,272 10,600
n@ 2,08,98,030 31,02,272 10,600
."':
‘;
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)

16.2 Nature and purpose of reserves
Statutory reserves u/fs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

use the reserve fund except with authorisation of Reserve Bank of India.

Capital contribution from holding Company

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents surplus/{deficit) of accumuiated earmings of the Company

Particulars Asat Asat Az
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017

Note 16
Other equity
Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 8,52,652 8,52,652 8,52,652
Capital contribution from holding Company 72,29,315 - -
Retained earnings {29,14,93,875) {10,08,40,488) 44,70,616

(28,34,11,908) (9,99,87,836) 53,23,268
16.1 Other equity movement
Statutory reserves ufs 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Opening Balance 8,52,652 8,52,652 -
Add : Transferred from surplus - - 8,52,652
Closing Balance 8,52,652 8,52,652 8,52,652
Capital contribution from holding Company
Opening Balance 5 =
Movement during the year 72,29,315 2 -
Closing Balance 72,29,315 - -
Retained earnings
Opening Balance (10,08,40,488) 44,70,616 10,60,007
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and los (19,06,63,301) (10,53,11,104) 42,63,261
Less: ‘Transfer to statutory reserve as per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 % - (8,52,652)
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 9,914 - -
Closing Balance (29,14,93,875) (10,08,40,488) 44,70,616

Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by housing Finance Company as per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank of India Act, 1987. The Company is not allowed to

Capital contribution reserve represents the proportionate amount of fair value of options charged to the Company on account of issuance of employee stock options to the
employees of the Company by its Parent Company (i.e. Indostar Capital Finance Limited) on its own shares..
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Note 17
Revenue from operations
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Interest on loans
- Loan portfolio 37,34,99,199 76,88,913
Interest on deposits
- Deposits with banks 25,56,711 66,35,630
37,60,55,910 1,43,24,543
Fees and commission income
- Fees 1,89,87,649 8,271
1,89,87,649 8,271
Net gain on fair value changes
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 65,00,328 -
Total fair value changes 65,00,328 -
Fair value changes:
- Realised 65,00,328 -
Total fair value changes 65,00,328 -
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments measured at amortised
cost category
- Assignment Income 2,41,67,091 -
2,41,67,091 -
Total 42,57,10,978 1,43,32,814
Note 18
Finance cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest expense on borrowings
Loans from banks 1,08,17,344
Other borrowings {including Inter Corporate Deposits) 19,78,90,419 -
Interest expense on debt securities
Commercial paper 1,01,94,751 -
Other interest expense
Bank charges & other related costs 19,35,046 23,898
) 22,08,37,560 23,898
Note 19
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on loans measured at amortised cost
Provision for expected credit loss 1,42,24,513 12,79,501
Impairment on others
Others 1,50,000 -
1,43,74,513 12,79,501
Note 20
Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries, other allowances and bonus 24,39,54,39 8,55,92,543
Gratuity expenses 13,67,352 3,65,322
Leave encashment 23,94,874 7,97,962
Contribution to provident and other funds 69,98,417 16,10,76%
Staff welfare expenses 12,73,211 4,55,225
Share based payment expense 72,29,315 2
Employee shared service costs 49,44,430 26,41,281
26,81,61,995 9,14,63,102




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees}

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Note 21
Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 1,01,57,692 14,36,367
Amortisation of intangible assets 49,15,393 8,15,062
1,50,73,085 22,51,429

Note 22

Other Expenses
Rent 57,05,417 13,56,628
Rates & taxes 4,25,928 60,80,917
Printing and stationery 28,28,401 8,90,346
Travelling & conveyance 1,35,11,311 55,46,772
Advertisement 1,53,145 -
Commission & brokerage 2,28,17,218 3,05,246
Office expenses 69,80,912 18,29,425
Communication expenses 23,10,430 3,23,758
Payment to auditors {note below) 15,06,005 1,58,997
Legal & professional charges 1,21,37,624 42,67,543
Other shared service costs 2,95,50,735 38,66,356

9,79,27,126 2,46,25,988

Payment to auditor includes:

a) as statutory auditors 8,72,000 1,58,997

b) as tax auditors 1,36,250 -

¢} for certification related matters 2,45,250 -

d) for other services 2,52,505

Total 15,06,005 1,58,997




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 23
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of

equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting profit impact of dilutive
potential equity shares, if any) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares

into equity shares.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

i. Profit attributable to equity holders (A)

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted EPS

ii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B)
iii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C)

iii. Basic earnings per share (%)
iv. Diluted earnings per share ()

(19,06,63,301)

9,27,87,672
9,27,87,672

(2.05)
(2.05)

(10,53,11,104)

2,03,83,561
2,03,83,561

(5.17)
(5.17)
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 24
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

(C) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest
rates. The Company primarily deploy funds in bank deposits and liquid debt securities as a part of its liquidity management approach. The Company
regularly reviews its average borrowing/lending cost including proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings/loans so as to manage the impact of
changes in interest rates.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The
Board has established limits on the non-trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company monitors on a regular basis to ensure positions
are maintained within the established limits.

(D) Operational and business risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expact to
eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential
risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education
and assessment processes, such as the use of internal audit.
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 24
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

Capital Disclosure

The Company maintains adequate capital to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements
of our regulator, National Housing Board(NHB). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other
measures, the regulations issued by NHB.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to
maximise shareholder value.

The Company maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
CET1 capital ratio 57.9% 209.0% 367146.3%
Tier 2 capital ratio 0.4% 0.6% 0.0%
Total capital ratio 58.3% 209.6% 367146.3%
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 25
Related Party Disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) are given below:

a) Relationships

I. Holding Company
IndoStar Capital Finance Limited

Il. Fellow Subsidiary
IndoStar Asset Advisary Private Limited

Names of other related parties:

Key Managerial Personnel

Shreejit Menon -Whole Time Director

Prabhat Tripathy -Whole Time Director (till 31 December 2018)

b) Transactions with key management personnel :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1} Short-term employee benefits 2,11,40,000 7,09,361
2} Reimbursement of expenses 2,24,712 19,029

Compensation of the Company's’ key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-

employment defined benefit plan.

¢} Transactions other than those with key management personnel :

Particulars Holding Company
1) Reimbursement of expenses 2019 4,24,25,860
2018 59,70,308
2} Advances taken 2019 -
2018 8,55,034
3) Infusion of share capital 2019 1,40,00,00,000
2018 50,00,00,000
3} Interest on loan from holding Company 2019 19,78,90,419
2018 =
4) Loan taken from holding Company (net) 2019 3,35,00,00,000
2018 =

d) The related party balances outstanding at year end are as follows:

i . Key Management
Particulars Holding Company Peisanial
1) Investment in share capital 2019 2,00,72,29,315 -
{including securities premium) 2018 60,00,00,000
2017 10,00,00,000 -
2) Reimbursement of expenses 2019 3,68,54,004
2018 69,25,557 6,790
2017 < =
3} Advances taken 2019 - s
2018 8,55,034 -
2017 - -
4) Loan from holding Company 2019 3,49,00,05,488 -
{including accrued interest) 2018 - -
2017 - -




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 26
Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers

Paiticulars For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2019 March 2018

Type of Services or service

Fees 1,89,87,649 8,271
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,89,87,649 8,271
Geographical markets

India 1,89,87,649 8,271

QOutside India % =
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,89,87,649 8,271
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 1,89,87,649 8,271

Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,89,87,649 8,271
Note 27
Contingent liabilities and Commitments
Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Capital commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - 52,60,000 #
Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed 34,57,34,401 3,56,04,917 -

In February 2019, the honorable Supreme Court of India in its judgment clarified that certain special allowances should be considered to measure obligations
under Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (the PF Act). There are interpretative challenges on the application of judgment
retrospectively and as such same has not been considered as contingent liability.

Note 28

Leases

In case of assets taken on lease

The Company has taken various office premises under operating lease. The lease payments recognized in the statement of profit & loss are Rs. 57,05,417
{March 2018: Rs.13,56,628). The non-cancellable operating lease agreements are for a period of 11 months to 36 months. There are no restrictions imposed by
lease arrangements. There are no sub leases.

The future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable operating lease as at the balance sheet date are summarized below :

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Minimum Lease Payments:

Not later than one year 48,85,677 34,37,357 -
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,61,00,919 35,86,035 -
Later than five years 1,12,91,515 - ”
Note 29

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

There are no amounts that need to be disclosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED') pertaining
to micro or small enterprises, as no supplier has intimated the Company about its status as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate
authority under MSMED.

Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

a. Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid - ™
b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - -
¢. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed

day

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the period} but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Act,2006)

e. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - =
f. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - .
as above are actually paid to the small enterprises




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 30
Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

The Company has an funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completad five years or more of service is eligible for a gratuity on
separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

Based on Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the following disclosures have been made as required by the standard:

A. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year

Net asset / (liability) to be recognized in the balance sheet

B. Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit of obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial {gain) / loss on obligation

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year

C. Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

D. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current service cost

Net interest cost

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

E. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains) / loss

- change in financial assumption

- experience variation

Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

F. Assumptions used

Discount rate
Salary growth rate

Withdrawal rates

G. Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
17,22,760 3,65,322 -
17,22,760 3,65,322 -
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
3,65,322 = -
13,40,012 3,65,322 -
27,340 - -
(9,914) 5 4
17,22,760 3,65,322 -
13,40,012 3,65,322
27,340 -
13,67,352 3,65,322
{19,160} =
9,246
{9,914) -
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
7.60% 7.50%
6.00% 6.00%
10% at younger ages 10% at younger ages
reducing to 6% at older reducing to 6% at
ages older ages

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

: As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 16,31,435 18,21,767 3,44,171 3,88,279
Salary growth rate (0.5% movement) 18,18,141 16,30,213 3.86,598 3,44,248
Withdrawal rate (10% movement) 16,80,584 17,63,872 3,53,959 3,76,855

H. Other information :
1. Plans assets comprises 100% of Insurance funds
2. The expected contribution for the next year is Rs. 5,696.

3. The average outstanding term of the obligations as at valuation date is 9.79 years.
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 33
Explanation of transition to Ind AS:

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company had prepared its
financial statements in accordance with Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions
of the Act ('previous GAAP").

The financial statements for the current year have been prepared under Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 including the
comparative information and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2017 (the “transition date”).

In preparing opening Ind AS balance sheet and in presenting the comparative information, the Company has adjusted amounts reported in financial
statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the financial
performance, cash flows and financial position is set out in the following tables and the notes that accompany the tables.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions
In preparing the first Ind AS financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions.

A. Optional exemptions availed

1. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

The Company has availed the exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and intangibles
as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the
date of transition {1 April 2017).

B. Mandatory Exceptions

1. Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates. However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not
required under previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates
considered in preparation of the financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried are amortised cost.

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model.

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets

As permitted under Ind AS 101, Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of
transition. In line with Ind AS 101, measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable.

Reconciliation of net worth as per previous GAAP and that computed under Ind AS

As 1 March
Particulars anzz:l g L As on 1 April 2017

Met worth under previous GAAP 50,40,57,833 10,53,23,268

Summary of Ind AS adjustments

Effective interest rate adjustment on loans and advances (40.85,669) i
Total Ind AS adjustments (40,85,669) -
Net worth under Ind AS 50,00,12,164 10,53,23,268




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2019
{Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 33
Explanation of transition to Ind AS:

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income as per previous GAAP and that computed under Ind AS

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Profits as per previous GAAP

Summary of Ind AS adjustments

In the statement of profit and loss:

Effective interest rate adjustment on loans and advances

Total Ind AS adjustments

Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

(10,12,25,435)

{40,85,669)

(40,85,669)
(10,53,11,104)

- ;,.-.-““'




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 34 - Disclosures Pursuant to the Master Circular - Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (NHB) Direction, 2016

I. Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017
(i) CRAR (%) 58.3% 209.6% 367146.3%
(ii) CRAR ~ Tier | Capital (%) 57.9% 209.0% 367146.3%
(iii) CRAR = Tier Il Capital (%) 0.6% 0.0%

(iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- Il Capital
|_(v} Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

0.4%

1. Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018 |

As at April 1, 2017

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii)of Income Tax Act, 1861 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year

Add:

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB act, 1987

b} Amount of special reserve ufs 36({1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

Less:

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

account which has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act,
1987

Balance at the end of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viiiof Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the
purposes of Statutory Reserve under Section 29¢C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total

b} Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into

8,52,652

8,52,652

8,52,652

8,52,652

8,52,652

8,52,652

8,52,652

B,52,652

8,52,652

8,552,652

8,52,652

Il Investments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

1. Value of Investments

(i) Gross value of Investments

(a) in India

{b) Outside India

(i} Provisions for Depreciation

(a) In India

(b} Outside india

{in) Net value of Investments

{al In India

(b} Qutside India

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
(i) Opeming balance

i) Add: Provisions made during the year

(iii} Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year
{iv} Closing balance

IV. Derivatives
1. Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)} / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements

{ii} Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under the
agreements

{iii} Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps

{iv) Concentration of credit risk ansing from the swaps

iv) The fair value of the swap book

2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

(i} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year
(i} Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March
2018

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly
effective”

{iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and nat "highly
effective”

Q}/ \ [ /




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Currency : Indian Rupees)

Note 34 - Disclosures Pursuant to the Master Circular - Housing Finance Companies - Corporate Governance (NHB) Direction, 2016

3. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

A. Qualitative Disclosure

HFCs shall describe their risk management policies pertaining to derivatives with particular
reference to the extent to which derivatives are used, the associated risks and business
purposes served. The discussion shall also include:

a) the structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading,

b} the scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems,

¢} policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the
continuing effectiveness of hedges / mitigants, and

d) accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income,
premiums and discounts; valuation of outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit
risk mitigation.

Quantitative Disclosure

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

Currency
Derivatives

Interest Rate
Derivatives

(i} Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)
(i) Marked to Market Positions

(a) Assets {+)

(b} Liability (-}

(iii} Credit Exposure

(iv) Unhedged Exposures

V. Securitisation

1. Details of Securitisation

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions

2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance
sheet

(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

(11} On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions

4. other than MRR

(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

a) Exposure 1o own securitizations

b} Exposure to third party securitisations

{11} On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements

a) Exposure to own securitisations

b} Exposure to third party securitisations

2. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2017

(i} No. of accounts
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC
(1ii) Aggregate consideration

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

As at March 31, 2018

3. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by HFCs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

(i) No. of accounts
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts assigned
(iii) Aggregate consideration

(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years

585
23,85,28,981
23,85,28,981

(v] Aggregate gain / loss over net book value

4. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

HFCs which purchase non-performing financial assets from other HFCs shall be required to make the following disclosures in the NTA to their Balance sheets: NA

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
{a) Number of accounts purchased during the year
(b} Aggregate outstanding

(a) Of these, murmber of accounts restructured during the year
{b] Aggregate outstanging |

B. Details:af No | Erfur'r'_ﬁp‘ Financial Assets sold:
1, No, of accoun‘&ﬂ__. G
2, Aggregate outstanding //

3. Agaregate considefafion receved
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(Currency : Indian Rupees)

VIl. Exposure

1. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

a) Direct Exposure

(i} Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages
on residential property that is or will be occupied by the
|borrower or that is rented; {Individual housing loans up to 15
lakh mav be shown senaratelv) )

(i} Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on

commercial real estates {office buildings, retail space, multi-
purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse
space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (MFB) limits;

(iii} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposures -

a} Residential

b} Commercial Real Estate

¢} Indirect Exposure Fund based and non-fund based exposures
on Mational Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs)

5,25,27,84,807

2,50,57,855

50,62,88,927

55,59,361

2. Exposure to Capital Market

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

(i} direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
carnorate deht:

(ii} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment in
shares {including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity
oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by
the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds
i.e. where the primary security other than shares / convertible
bands / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

{v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
puarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;

(vi} loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares
/ bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis for
meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows /
issues;

{viii} All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

Total Exg e to Capital Market




3. Details of financing of parent Company products: None

4. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC:
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the financials year/period.

5. Unsecured Advances : None

Viil. Miscellaneous

1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators : None

2. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators : None

3. Related party Transactions : Refer Note 17

4. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

Instrument

Credit Rating Agency

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

Commercial Paper

Term Loans/NCD's

CARE
ICRA
India Ratings and Research
Private Limited

Al+
Al+

AA-

Al+
Al+

5. Remuneration of Directors : None
IX. Additional Disclosures

1. Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the
head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

1. Provisions for depreciation on Invesiment

2. Provision made towards Income tax

3, Provision towards NPA

4. Provision for Standard Assets {with details like teaser loan,
CRE, CRE-RH etc.)

5. Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

22,81,504

1,32,22,510

12,79,501

15,06,437

{Amount in Rupees)

Hou

sing

Non-Housing

Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount
b} Provisions made
Sub-Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount
b} Provisions made
Doubtful Assets — Category-1
a) Total Qutstanding Amount
b} Provisions made

Doubtful Assets - Category-Ii
a) Total Outstanding Amount
b) Provisions made
Doubtful Assets — Category-lil
a) Total Qutstanding Amount
b} Provisions made

Loss Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount
b} Provisions made

TOTAL

a) Total Qutstanding Amount
b} Provisions made

5,28,89,58,213
1.32,22,510

71,41,967
22,81,504

5,29,61,00,180
1,55,04,014

51,05,28,875
12,79,501

51,05,28,875
12,759,501




2. Draw Down from Reserves : None

3. Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

3a. Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2018

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total

Deposits of the HFC

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2017

3b. Concentration of Loans & Advances

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

lcystomers

Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers 29,18,34,061 6,73,18,516 -

Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to

Total Advances of the HFC 5.53% 13.15% -

3c. Concentration of all Exposure {including off-balance sheet exposure) {Amount in Rupees)
Particulars As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 1, 2017

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 32,38,04,034 6,78,12,359 -

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers /

customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on borrowers / 5.76% 12.37% -

3d. Concentration of NPAs

{Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2017

Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts

71,41,967

As at March 31, 2018

3e, Sector-wise NPAs

{Amount in Rupees)

Sector

As at March 31,2019 |

As at March 31, 2018

| Asatapril1, 2017

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

A, Housing Loans:

1. Individuals

2. Builders/Project Loans
3. Corporates

4. Others

B. Non-Housing Loans:
1. Individuals

2. Builders/Project Loans
3. Corporates

4. Others

0.13%

4. Movement of NPAs

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

{1} Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

{Hl} Movement of NPAs (Gross)

a) Opening balance

b} Additions during the year

c) Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

(1) Movement of Net NPAs

a} Opening balance

b) Additions during the year

¢} Reductions during the year

d) Closing balance

{IV] Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on
standard assets)

a) Opening balance

b) Provisions made during the year

¢} Write-off/write-back of excess provisions

0.09%

71,41,967

71,41,967

48,60,463

48,60,463

22,81,504

d) Closing balance

22,81,504

As at April 1, 2017




5. Overseas Assets : None

6. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored {which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms) : None

X. Customers Complaints

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019

As at March 31, 2018

As at April 1, 2017

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b} No. of complaints received during the year

¢) No. of complaints redressed during the year

d} No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

43
41
2

3
3
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